
 
Cornell University Student Assembly 
Agenda of the Thursday, November 14th, 2019 Meeting 

4:45-6:30pm in the Memorial Room of Willard Straight Hall 

   
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
II. Approval of the Minutes 

a. November 7th, 2019 
 

III. Open Microphone 
 

IV. Byline Reports 
a. Convocation  
b. Class Councils 
c. Senior Days  
 

V. New Business 
a. Resolution 14: Creation of the Office of Student Government 

Relations 
b. Resolution 15: Creation of a Working Group of Student 

Assembly Composition, Structure, and Representations  
c. Resolution 16: Creation of the “One Cornell Fund” 
d. Resolution 17: Establishing a Framework for Electronic Voting 
 

VI. Business of the Day  
a. Resolution 12: Revising the Student Assembly Bylaws to 

Dictate that Community Votes be Conducted Online  
 

VII. Adjournment  
 

VIII. Executive Session 
 

https://cornell.box.com/s/05xic0xbe0hb0i3rjksp9y7hrj0vsnrr
https://cornell.box.com/s/05xic0xbe0hb0i3rjksp9y7hrj0vsnrr
https://cornell.box.com/s/rb61w0fogdi3q4yrs6w20citajytlewh
https://cornell.box.com/s/rb61w0fogdi3q4yrs6w20citajytlewh
https://cornell.box.com/s/n3gvwjxqq7ebi4lat2r0rxlw49gezlia
https://cornell.box.com/s/n3gvwjxqq7ebi4lat2r0rxlw49gezlia
https://cornell.box.com/s/grj9g68eqe0vzyfqc6wzfxc3468yn0nk
https://cornell.box.com/s/grj9g68eqe0vzyfqc6wzfxc3468yn0nk
https://cornell.box.com/s/c2ssgpnyfwu48mq18znem0yhuhyk17dg
https://cornell.box.com/s/c2ssgpnyfwu48mq18znem0yhuhyk17dg
https://cornell.box.com/s/9ofduwx500m3vyb2vf8n9ukjuhaojw0i
https://cornell.box.com/s/9ofduwx500m3vyb2vf8n9ukjuhaojw0i
https://cornell.box.com/s/vp8egfjtiok9ull3bwu3r0sckop7zao3
https://cornell.box.com/s/vp8egfjtiok9ull3bwu3r0sckop7zao3
https://cornell.box.com/s/eckl6u0u3x4ddubs798jqhvxm7e56ymo
https://cornell.box.com/s/eckl6u0u3x4ddubs798jqhvxm7e56ymo
https://cornell.box.com/s/qphouzqdrdz1royurb51ivbhp4u9ssae
https://cornell.box.com/s/qphouzqdrdz1royurb51ivbhp4u9ssae


  
 

Cornell University Student Assembly 
Minutes of the Thursday, November 7th, 2019 

Meeting, 4:45-5:37 pm in 701 Clark Hall 
 

I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
a. J. Anderson called the meeting to order at 4:45 pm.  
b. Roll Call: 

i. Present: M. Adeghe, J. Anderson, M. Baker, C. Benedict, O. Egharevba, M. 
Haddad, C. Huang, J. Kroll, Y. Li, G. Martin, N. Matolka, I. Pavlov, T. 
Reuning, N. Watson, B. Weintraub, V. Xu, J. Youngblood, Y. Yuan 

ii. Absent: J. Feit (unexcused), L. Ordonez (excused), L. Smith (excused), K. 
Wondimu (excused) 

iii. Arrived After Roll Call: A. Cass (unexcused), U. Chukwukere (excused), J. 
Clancy (unexcused), P. Solovyeva (unexcused), S. Sun (unexcused), S. Xu 
(excused) 

II. Announcements 
a. J. Anderson said that the meeting is not in its traditional setting of the Memorial 

Room today, and that this will be a one-time occurrence so that the audio issues in 
the Memorial Room can be worked out for the future. He added that those assembly 
members that speak quietly should project when they speak at this meeting, since 
there are no microphones in this room. 

b. C. Huang said that there will be Sprint Planning on Sunday, and that those members 
that cannot make it should let V. Xu know. She added that it will probably be in the 
same location as the last Sprint Planning. 

c. C. Benedict said that there are a couple of events coming in the near future including 
the Canandaigua Treaty Renewal, which is a treaty that exists between the United 
States and the Six Nations. He added that this would be taking place on Monday, 
November 11th, and that anyone interested in attending the renewal will be able to 
leave from a van at Akwe:kon at 10:00 am, which would return at around 6:00 pm. 

d. T. Reuning said that on Friday, November 15th, the Latinx community will be 
commemorating the 25th anniversary of the Latino Living Center and the 26th 
anniversary of the Day Hall takeover, which was organized by Latinx students in 
1993. He added that the commemoration will begin at 4:15 at Day Hall, after which 
people will walk from there to the LLC, where the dean who organized the protest 
will be speaking. 

e. M. Haddad said that Humecathon will be happening next weekend, and that it is an 
event where people from all majors can come together to solve a policy problem, 
and that anyone interested in representing the SA at Humecathon should contact 
her. 

f. J. Anderson said that he is the chair of the SAFC Transformation Committee, and 



that progress in the committee has been wonderful, and that his goal is to have an 
overview document by the end of the semester at the latest to outline the major 
changes that have been discussed in the committee. He added that following this, 
there will be presentations and focus groups, which will culminate in a fully-realized 
change to be sent to SAFC, and that anyone who hears anything about SAFC from 
their constituents or the community should let him know. He also said that there will 
be an executive session following this meeting. 

III. Open Microphone 
a. No speakers at the open microphone. 

IV. Approval of the Minutes 
a. October 31st Minutes 

i. B. Weintraub moved to amend the minutes such that the term “EOC” is 
replaced with “EEOC” wherever it occurs – amended. 

ii. J. Anderson moved to amend the minutes such that it is reflected that his 
motion to extend the meeting until 8:00 pm was approved – amended. 

iii. Motion to approve the October 31st minutes – approved. 
V. Byline Reports 

a. Empathy, Assistance and Referral Service (EARS) 
i. M. Adeghe said that EARS is a counseling service that provides counseling 

six nights a week for several hours on each night, and that they are 
completely anonymous. She added that they had $1.50 in the prior byline 
cycle and asked for that amount again, which was granted. She also said that 
there was not much to say about this organization. 

ii. Motion to approve EARS’ byline funding – approved 21-0-1. 
b. Cornell Minds Matter (CMM) 

i. M. Adeghe said that CMM provides support for people seeking mental 
health help, and that they are not counselors but they do help make life more 
comfortable for students on campus. She added that they have events in 
Willard Straight Hall every week, and that they wanted to go to a $2.50 
funding amount to facilitate their becoming more of an umbrella 
organization for other mental health organizations on campus. She also said 
that there was not a lot of contention around this. 

ii. T. Reuning said that he knows that the voting in AppsCom is anonymous 
and asked if anyone would like to speak on why there was one person who 
voted no. 

iii. M. Adeghe said that she doesn’t know who voted in that way or even 
whether or not that person is an SA member, but that she does remember 
that one of the things brought up in the discussion of the funding was that 
they did not have a structure or criteria set in place about how they plan on 
going about divvying up the $10,000 for co-sponsorships, and that they 
might have had that in mind when voting no. She added that their surplus 
was another thing that was slightly contentious, but that the advisor of the 
organization explained that she was new last year and was being particularly 
frugal as a result of that, and so they had a bit of a surplus. She also said that 
those two reasons against giving them $2.50 were probably those reflected in 
the vote of no. 

iv. Motion to approve CMM’s byline funding – approved 21-0-1. 
c. Cornell Environmental Collaborative (ECO) 



i. M. Adeghe said that ECO is the umbrella organization for environmentally-
focused groups on campus, and that they have about 20-plus organizations 
under them including some project teams and organizations centered around 
sustainability. She added that they were at $0.76 and wanted $1.00 to expand 
and have more people know about them and the community on campus that 
supports these missions. She also said that this was also not a super 
contentious vote, and that there was one no-vote, but that there is nothing 
that she can think of as to why that would be. 

ii. Motion to approve ECO’s byline funding – approved 21-0-1. 
VI. New Business & Business of the Day 

a. Resolution 11: Approving Special Projects Request for Social Enterprise 
i. C. Huang presented the resolution. 
ii. J. Youngblood asked how much money is left in the SPF right now. 
iii. J. Anderson said that they are currently calculating that, but that they did giv 

themselves $70,000 from SAFC at the last meeting. 
iv. M. Adeghe said that any members who have projects related to their 

constituents, such as things said in their platform, are allowed to use SPF for 
these initiatives, and that they do have an extra $70,000 now. 

v. C. Huang said that she would discourage people who want retroactive 
funding for events that already happened from applying, but that they still 
may do so. 

vi. J. Anderson said that they will be transitioning the form for these 
applications to something that is supported by the Office of the Assemblies 
so as to be sustainable. 

vii. There was a motion to move Resolution 11 to Business of the Day – 
approved 21-0-1. 

viii. There was a motion to vote. 
1. G. Martin asked who the parliamentarian is. 
2. J. Anderson said that Deborah Nyakaru is, but that in her absence he 

is filling that role. 
ix. Motion to vote on Resolution 11 – approved 21-0-2. 

b. Resolution 12: Revising the Student Assembly Bylaws to Dictate that Community 
Votes be Conducted Online 

i. J. Kroll presented the background that prompted this resolution. 
ii. M. Haddad presented the changes that this resolution would make. 
iii. N. Watson asked how much time in advance people would be given to know 

about a coming vote. 
iv. M. Haddad said that it would normally be on a resolution that starts out as 

New Business and then is voted on a week later as Business of the Day, 
which would give about a week’s time. 

v. J. Kroll said that it would fall upon the organizations looking to mobilize 
people to tell them when and where to vote. 

vi. N. Watson asked when they would therefore be sending the link. 
vii. M. Haddad said that they would not be sending it, and that it would instead 

be posted on the SA website. 
viii. C. Huang said that, to clarify for new members, they did have a very 

contentious vote last semester where people had to say out loud what their 
vote was, which made some students feel uncomfortable, and that as for her 



question, she loves this idea, but that if they were to have a Sense-of-the-
Body resolution, and only three people were in the audience that day, if they 
would still use the online method, or if the vote would be conducted in 
person. 

ix. J. Kroll said that he doesn’t think that it’s particularly challenging to set up 
this online survey, and that it could be amended to have sponsors opt for in-
person voting, but have online voting be the default. 

x. M. Haddad said that a meeting with an audience of three people could still 
have people who couldn’t show up but wanted to. 

xi. I. Pavlov asked what the exact voting period would be, and how long the 
voting would be live. 

xii. J. Kroll said that it would open at the beginning of the meeting, so that 
people could go to the livestream of the meeting and see what is going on. 

xiii. B. Weintraub said that if this were to be made the case, then there should be 
no option to opt out of the online voting, and that he could see a group who 
can get a lot of members out to vote on a resolution that might be 
combative. 

xiv. J. Kroll said that he suggested opting out in passing and that he now sees that 
it might not be a good idea. 

xv. B. Weintraub asked if they have the tech capacity to do this. 
xvi. M. Haddad said that this was discussed with the OA, and that based on what 

they told them, this should be feasible. 
xvii. M. Baker said that she is not challenging this resolution and will vote in favor 

of it, and asked if a person can change their mind once their vote, such as if 
they change their mind while watching the discussion. 

xviii. J. Kroll said that that is a good question. 
xix. M. Haddad said that she does not believe that they can. 
xx. Discussion continued in this regard. 
xxi. J. Clancy said that he agrees with B. Weintraub’s point in needing consistency 

on this, and that he also thinks that they might want to bear on the side of 
stating that there is a livestream to watch and then make one decision, which 
will make it less logistically challenging. 

xxii. T. Reuning said that his one concern is the language specifying Qualtrics, and 
that that might be the system now, but that Cornell might change it down the 
line. He added that they maybe should instead mention a “secure survey” 
without specifying “Qualtrics”. 

xxiii. J. Kroll said that that is definitely something to consider, and that they like 
Qualtrics because they can track the votes. 

xxiv. O. Egharevba asked what the protocol would be if they decide to change a 
resolution to Sense-of-the-Body during the meeting, and if this online system 
would be set ahead of time. 

xxv. J. Kroll said that it’s not congruent with the bylaws for such a change to 
happen, and that if it were, the vote would occur at the following meeting, 
which gives the parliamentarian and the clerk time to set that up. 

xxvi. N. Watson asked if SA members can vote in the community vote, and how 
they plan on stopping members from signing on to the online vote and 
voting if they cannot. 

xxvii. J. Anderson explained the voting process. 



xxviii. N. Watson asked how they will stop them from voting. 
xxix. Discussion continued in this regard. 
xxx. I. Pavlov said that she thinks it would be great if there were a way to mark 

SA members as separate, and that she disagrees that a community member’s 
vote should be binding, and that if they have the technological capacity to 
allow people to change their votes, they should have that, and that if there 
can be a button to edit or reverse the vote, that should be possible. 

xxxi. M. Baker said that, if there is no way to do that, there should be a popup 
before their vote that says that the vote is binding. 

xxxii. V. Xu asked why they don’t just open it in the period in which they are 
voting, so that they will have watched the livestream or otherwise have their 
opinion in mind. 

xxxiii. J. Kroll said that part of the problem is that how little time that is, and that a 
four-minute window might be problematic. He added that technically, the 
vote should be conducted before the SA votes so that the community vote 
can be announced. 

xxxiv. M. Haddad said that there are also prelims on Thursday nights. 
xxxv. M. Adeghe asked what prelims have to do with this issue. 
xxxvi. J. Kroll said that it might be stressful to have to keep checking for when the 

vote goes live. 
xxxvii. Y. Yuan said that in thinking about last semester’s BDS vote, the wi-fi service 

in Willard Straight Hall would have been jammed if an online vote were held 
at that time, and so he would prefer that they can start the vote earlier than 
SA voting. 

xxxviii. J. Kroll said that the idea is to start the voting when the meeting starts and 
end it before the SA voting, and that he thinks that the wi-fi would be less of 
a problem than the website server itself. 

xxxix. G. Martin said that he doesn’t think that this is the perfect model for 
accessibility, but that it is opening it up. 

xl. M. Adeghe said that she supposes that she just didn’t understand that the 
point was about wi-fi, and that the point is that not everyone has to be there 
at the time of the vote so it probably wouldn’t be affected. She added that 
she supposes that she understands the concern about the prelims, but that 
she doesn’t think that it makes much sense, but that this opens up 
accessibility more than it hurts it. 

xli. Discussion continued in this regard. 
xlii. B. Weintraub said that he thinks that they should try to make the voting 

multiple hours, and that 4 minutes is problematic, and asked what would 
happen if they open the meeting at 4:45 but then vote on the relevant 
resolution at 5:05. He added that he knows that this presents some problems, 
and asked what would happen if they opened the vote the morning of the 
meeting so that they ensure that there is a larger block of time, and then close 
the voting at 4:45. He also said that if they close it at 4:45 they would not 
hear the discussion, and that he thinks that the discussion of the variable end 
time could pose issues because that’s generally not how voting works, so they 
should figure it out. 

xliii. J. Kroll said that their current goal is to keep it as close to the current process 
as possible, and that if an issue is so polarizing that a significant number of 



undergraduate students take interest in it, the discussion of it probably won’t 
last under an hour. 

xliv. M. Haddad said that the community votes are conducted during the meeting 
so that they can listen to what is going on at the meeting. 

xlv. G. Martin asked if they will have access to what the community vote is 
before they vote. 

xlvi. J. Kroll replied in the affirmative, and said that the vote is revealed before the 
SA votes, but that this did not happen at the BDS vote last semester. 

xlvii. A. Cass said that they wanted to comment on the concern raised about when 
to start the voting, and that they could understand if they wanted to set an 
amount of time that people should vote, but that they do not think that a 
provision like that would be necessary, but that it couldn’t hurt. 

xlviii. J. Clancy said that he agrees that these community votes do not occur very 
often, but that they do need to be prepared for the eventuality that these 
things do come up, and that they have a process to deal with it, and so the 
thinks that going into the morning is a bit much, but having an absentee 
ballot to start at noon and end early would be good. He added that he thinks 
that starting in the morning is too much time, but starting at the meeting is 
too little, and that he thinks that there is some value in setting a hard deadline 
for voting. He also said that he is not entirely sure about how fast Qualtrics 
can do what it needs to do, and if the discussion ends early, they can recess, 
wait for the community vote, and then vote as an assembly. 

xlix. J. Kroll said that they are not ignoring the fact that this will happen in the 
context of contentious cases, and that this was designed for those cases, and 
that he thinks that they would love to extend the voting for as long as 
possible, but that it would turn into a gray area of a community vote vs a 
referendum. He added that, to keep to bylaws as closely as possible, they 
have to open voting up at the start of the meeting and close it at the close of 
debate, but that this would likely be an hour or two. He also said that he 
thinks that this system is imperfect, but that it does eliminate a lot of the 
accessibility issues. 

l. T. Reuning said that he agrees with the concerns about variable end times, 
but that exists with the current system in the first place, and that he had to 
run to vote in the BDS resolution last year. He added that it’s an issues that 
exists anyway, and that it’s not a perfect system, but it is more accessible than 
the current one, which is what they should be moving toward. 

li. Ian Wallace said that another thing to consider is that typically, when a 
resolution is introduced, it is in New Business, and that such resolutions are 
often moved to Business of the Day on the day they’re introduced and then 
are voted on that day, and so there might be issues there. He added that in 
cases of the regular procedure being followed, people would have access to 
the discussion of the prior week. 

lii. M. Adeghe said that she wanted to echo what T. Reuning said about variable 
end times being a big concern, and that she doesn’t know if there’s any way 
to fix that, and that with this style of vote, there will always be a variable end 
time unless they decide to set one. 

liii. J. Kroll said that if groups understand that there might not be a debate going 
in and that voting would therefore happen early, it might encourage fostering 



debate to give people more time. 
liv. V. Xu said that she wanted to go back to the point M. Baker brought up 

about it not being possible to submit multiple time, and that she thinks that 
considering the timing issues, she doesn’t think it’s necessary to start a few 
hours earlier, and that if people are interested, they can watch the video. She 
added that a disclaimer should be included to make it very clear that this is 
the only time a vote can be cast, such that there is no confusion. 

lv. B. Weintraub moved to table the resolution. 
1. The motion was withdrawn. 

lvi. I. Pavlov said that she thinks that it needs to be open at the start of the 
meeting and not before that because it enters the gray area of referendum vs 
community vote, and that as G. Martin said, they are not trying to create a 
perfect model because that is a wholly different thing. She added that they 
are making the current model more accessible, and that she does think that 
people should be able to change their votes if it is within their technological 
means. 

lvii. B. Weintraub moved to table Resolution 12 – tabled 23-0-1. 
c. Resolution 13: Creating an ad-hoc Committee for PFC Transformation 

i. J. Anderson presented the resolution. 
ii. Motion to move the resolution to Business of the Day – approved 23-0-1. 
iii. Motion to vote on Resolution 13 – approved 23-0-1. 

VII. Executive Session 
a. J. Anderson moved the meeting to executive session at 5:37 pm. 

VIII. Adjournment 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
John Hannan 
Clerk of the Assembly 
 



 
 

 
Rationale of the Committee 

The Committee voted to fund Convocation at $18.00 for the 2020-2022 
Byline Funding Cycle.  

The Committee felt that while Convocation does great work in bringing in a 
speaker for the seniors every May, the Convocation committee members were 
unable to answer or give satisfactory answers for many of the questions The 
Committee proposed. There were many aspects of the budget that when asked 
about, the presenters had no information on. While we understand the current 
convocation committee members were not on the committee last year, we found it 
difficult to come to a decision considering there was information that we felt was 
missing. Furthermore, part of the application is to provide hypothetical cuts to 
funding of 10%, 25% and 35%, The Committee was very disappointed that the 
hypothetical cuts were left out because Convocation felt that it was “unnecessary”. 

The Committee looks forward to working with Convocation in the future 
and seeing how this part of graduation weekend can be funded more by the 
University, considering that the University mandates many things during 
Convocation. The Committee is comfortable funding Convocation at $18 per 
student and wants to see as much of the SAF allocation as possible being used for 
the honorarium in order to secure more high profile, name-recognized speakers. 

 
Vote Totals  

Organization Convocation Committee 

2018 – 2020 Allocation $16.85 

2020 – 2022 Request $18.00 

Appropriations Committee 
Recommendation $18.00 



 
The committee votes down from the highest amount proposed to the lowest, 

to give the group the advantage.  
The vote totals from the Committee were as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Moriah Adeghe 
Vice President for Finance, Cornell Student Assembly 
 

Amount Vote 
$18.00 11-1-1 



 

 
 
Rationale of the Committee 

The Committee voted to fund Class Councils at $2.35 for the 2020-2022 
Byline Funding Cycle.  

The Committee supports the work that Class Councils does to try and foster 
class pride throughout a student’s time at Cornell. The primary reason The 
Committee did not feel comfortable giving an increase was because of the lack of a 
budget. While Class Councils provided a budget outline, we felt that we did not 
have enough information to feel comfortable providing an increase. Furthermore, 
the bus program was never listed as a source of income, nor was food at meetings 
listed as a source of expenditure. The Committee was disappointed that we 
discovered that information by a committee member that had known about the 
food at meetings. Additionally, the lack of detailed hypothetical cuts, describing 
what type of programs would get cut or which specific events would be scaled 
down given that there was a decrease in funding, was discouraging for many 
Committee members. 

The Committee was overall pleased with the work that Class Councils does, 
but the lack of a detailed budget and the missing budget information were the 
reasons that The Committee felt Class Councils did not need an increase in 
funding. 

 
Vote Totals  

Organization Class Councils 

2018 – 2020 Allocation $2.35 

2020 – 2022 Request $2.40 

Appropriations Committee 
Recommendation $2.35 



 
The committee votes down from the highest amount proposed to the lowest, 

to give the group the advantage.  
The vote totals from the Committee were as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Moriah Adeghe 
Vice President for Finance, Cornell Student Assembly 
 
 

Amount Vote 
$2.40 1-11-2 
$2.35 11-2-1 



 

 
 
Rationale of the Committee 

The Committee voted to fund Senior Days at $5.10 for the 2020-2022 Byline 
Funding Cycle.  

The Committee supports Senior days and the programs they provide during 
the time leading up to graduation in both May and December. The lack of a 
detailed budget breaking down how much was spent on each of the free and 
ticketed events, as well as the lack of ticket price information and attendance 
numbers, was what ultimately led The Committee to not fund Senior Days at their 
requested amount. The Committee wished that more information was provided so 
that we could have had a more comprehensive discussion and could have possibly 
funded Senior Days at the request amount. In the future we hope that Senior Days 
can track attendance and ticket prices for all events and present those number 
during the next byline funding cycle 

Overall, The Committee is satisfied with the work that Senior Days does. 
 

Vote Totals  
The committee votes down from the highest amount proposed to the lowest, 

to give the group the advantage.  
The vote totals from the Committee were as follows: 

Organization Senior Days 

2018 – 2020 Allocation $4.85 

2020 – 2022 Request $5.90 

Appropriations Committee 
Recommendation $5.10 

Amount Vote 
$5.90 2-8-2 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Moriah Adeghe 
Vice President for Finance, Cornell Student Assembly 
 

$5.10 8-2-2 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

S.A. Resolution #14 1 

Creation of the Office of Student Government Relations 2 

 3 

ABSTRACT: This resolution creates an Office of Student Government Relations  4 
 5 
Sponsored by: Joe Anderson ’20, Cat Huang ’21, Liel Sterling ’21, Lucas Smith ‘22 6 
 7 
Whereas, the Student Assembly strives to represent the issues of the student body to Cornell 8 
University Administration; 9 
 10 
Whereas, many issues that students experience are in results of policymaking at the local, state, and 11 
federal levels; 12 
 13 
Whereas, recognizing that Cornell University is the land-grant university of the state of New York 14 
and operates three contract colleges: the College of Agriculture and Life Sciences, the College of 15 
Human Ecology, and the School of Industrial and Labor Relations; 16 
 17 
Whereas, the Student Assembly has the duty of representing the student interests at the local, state, 18 
and federal level; 19 
 20 
Whereas, the duties of organizing potential lobbying trips to Albany and Washington D.C. currently 21 
fall within the jurisdiction of the SA Executive Vice President; 22 
 23 
Whereas, the workload of effectively organizing the trips to Albany and Washington D.C. and 24 
executing the rest of responsibilities of the Executive Vice President are immense and the Student 25 
Assembly has not recently engaged in lobbying trips; 26 
 27 
Be it therefore resolved, that the Student Assembly creates the Office of the Student Government 28 
Relations (OSGR); 29 
 30 
Be it further resolved, that the OSGR will be led by a Director of Student Government Relations; 31 
 32 
Be it further resolved, that the Director of Student Government Relations will have three 33 
branches: (1) City and Local Relations (which is currently the City and Local Affairs Committee of 34 
the Student Assembly), (2) State Government Relations, (3) Federal Government Relations; 35 
 36 
Be it further resolved, that the Director of Student Government Relations will be appointed by the 37 
President of the Student Assembly and will be confirmed by a majority vote of the Student 38 
Assembly; 39 
 40 
Be it further resolved, that the Director of Student Government Relations shall be a voting 41 
member of the Student Assembly nor a voting member of another shared governance body; 42 
 43 

Originally Presented on:  (11/14/2019) 

Type of Action:  Internal Policy 

Status/Result:  New Business 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

Be it further resolved, that the Directors of City and Local Affairs, State Relations, and Federal 44 
Relations may be a voting member of the Student Assembly or any other shared governance body; 45 
 46 
Be it further resolved, that it will be highly encouraged that the Director of State Relations be a 47 
student of one of the contract colleges (see above) and serve as the liaison, in addition to the 48 
President of the Student Assembly, to the SUNY Student Assembly  49 
 50 
Be it further resolved, that the Student Assembly will allocate $10,000 from its Special Projects 51 
Fund to be the seed funding of the OSGR to be used for trips to Albany and Washington D.C.; 52 
 53 
Be it further resolved, that the OSGR will partner with other relevant student organizations 54 
depending on the content of the lobbying trip to either Albany or Washington D.C.; 55 
 56 
Be it further resolved, that the OSGR will partner with Cornell University Relations, where 57 
appropriate, to work collaboratively on messaging, lobbying training, and any other beneficial 58 
projects; 59 
 60 
Be it further resolved, that the following be inserted into the bylaws in Article 1, Section 2: 61 
 D. The SA can grant an ex-officio position to any member of the Cornell Community to 62 
serve as the Student Advocate. 63 
 E. The SA can grant an ex-officio position to any member of the Cornell Community to 64 
serve as the Director of Student Government Relations.  65 
 66 
Be it further resolved, that the parts 10 and 12 be removed from Article 3, Section 2; 67 
 68 
Be it finally resolved, that the Student Assembly will look to approve a set of bylaws by the end of 69 
the Fall 2019 Semester. 70 
 71 
Respectfully Submitted, 72 
 73 
Joseph Anderson ‘20 74 
President, Student Assembly 75 

 76 
Cat Huang ‘21 77 
Executive Vice President, Student Assembly 78 
 79 
Liel Sterling ‘21 80 
Student Advocate, Office of the Student Advocate 81 

 82 
Lucas Smith ‘22 83 
College of Agriculture and Life Sciences Representative, Student Assembly 84 
   85 
(Reviewed by: Executive Committee, 4-0-0, 11/12/2019) 86 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

S.A. Resolution #15 1 

Creation of a Working Group of Student Assembly Composition, Structure, and 2 

Representations 3 

 4 

ABSTRACT: This resolution creates a working group to study the composition of the Student Assembly.  5 
 6 
Sponsored by: Joe Anderson ’20 7 
 8 
Whereas, the Student Assembly strives to represent the interests of the undergraduate student body; 9 
 10 
Whereas, many recent changes to the Student Assembly structure have come at the failures to 11 
address the representations of needs for several communities; 12 
 13 
Whereas, the Student Assembly has a unique structure that places itself in a unique position than its 14 
peer student governments; 15 
 16 
Be it, therefore, resolved, that the Student Assembly will endorse the creation of a working group 17 
of Student Assembly members to study peer institutions, current concepts of representation, and 18 
inform any potential of changes in the structure of the Assembly; 19 
 20 
Be it further resolved, that this Working Group will be chaired by the Student Assembly 21 
Parliamentarian; 22 
 23 
Be it further resolved, the composition of this Working Group will be 2 voting members from the 24 
Class of 2023, 2 voting members from the Class of 2022, 1 voting member from the Class of 2021, 1 25 
voting member from the Class of 2020; 26 
 27 
Be it further resolved, the Executive Archvisit will sit ex-officio on the Working Group; 28 
 29 
Be it further resolved, the Working Group meetings will be open to all members of the public 30 
 31 
Be it further resolved, that the Working Group will prepare a deliverable denoting specific 32 
demographic members of the 2019-2020 Student Assembly membership by the end of Fall 2019 33 
 34 
Be it further resolved, that the Working Group will prepare a finalized report by before the Spring 35 
2020 Elections on potential structural and composition based changes that would improve the 36 
representation of the Student Assembly; 37 
 38 
Be it finally resolved, that the Student Assembly, before the Spring 2020 Elections, will vote 39 
whether or not to implement these changes. 40 
 41 
Respectfully Submitted, 42 
 43 

Originally Presented on:  (11/14/2019) 

Type of Action:  Legislation 

Status/Result:  New Business 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

Joseph Anderson ‘20 44 
President, Student Assembly 45 
   46 
(Reviewed by: Executive Committee, 5-0-0, 11/12/2019) 47 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

S.A. Resolution #16 1 

Creation of the “One Cornell Fund” 2 

 3 

ABSTRACT: This resolution creates a fund for organization collaboration, named the “One Cornell Fund”  4 
 5 
Sponsored by: Joe Anderson ’20 6 
 7 
Whereas, collaboration between student organizations in programming allows student to engage in 8 
conversations with others from a diversity of backgrounds and experiences; 9 
 10 
Whereas, collaboration between student organizations allows for bigger programs that enhance the 11 
student experience; 12 
 13 
Whereas, collaborative co-programming many times can be restrictive on the already limited 14 
budgets of many student organizations; 15 
 16 
Whereas, it is the duty of the Student Assembly to effectively steward the Student Activity Fee, as 17 
per the Student Assembly Charter, Appendix A 18 
 19 
Whereas, the Student Assembly has recently experienced an influx of money from a recent transfer 20 
from SAFC; 21 
 22 
Be it therefore resolved, that $10,000 from the Student Assembly Special Projects Fund be 23 
allocated to a new account called the “One Cornell Fund” to promote the collaboration of student 24 
organizations on programming; 25 
 26 
Be it further resolved, that a public application be created and available on the Office of the 27 
Assemblies site, next to the current Student Assembly Special Projects Funding Request; 28 
 29 
Be it further resolved, that the following be inserted in the Student Assembly Standing Rules 30 
Section 8, effective immediately 31 
 32 
A. C. One Cornell Fund 33 

1. Rule 11. The One Cornell Fund may be used by any registered student organizations 34 
to promote collaboration for co-programming between the organizations. 35 

2. Rule 12. The limit to being sought from the One Cornell Fund is dependent upon 36 
the number of organizations participating in the potential collaboration as follows: 37 

a) Two organizations: $500 limit 38 
b) Three organization $750 limit 39 
c) Four or more organizations: $1000 limit 40 

3. Rule 13. Approval for all One Cornell Funds should go through the Student 41 
Assembly Executive Committee during byline funding cycle years and should go 42 
through the Student Assembly Appropriations Committee during non-byline funding 43 
cycle years. 44 

Originally Presented on:  (11/14/2019) 

Type of Action:  Legislation 

Status/Result:  New Business 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

4. Rule 14. All approved One Cornell Fund requests shall be reported out verbally to 45 
the Student Assembly during the “Announcements and Reports” section of the 46 
meeting by the Vice President of Finance. 47 

5. Rule 15. Any member of the Student Assembly may ask questions regarding the 48 
request and may motion of overturn the funding decision, if opposed, the motion 49 
would pass by majority vote of the Student Assembly.  50 

 51 
Respectfully Submitted, 52 
 53 
Joseph Anderson ‘20 54 
President, Student Assembly 55 
   56 
(Reviewed by: Executive Committee, 4-0-0, 11/12/2019) 57 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

S.A. Resolution #17 1 

Establishing a Framework for Electronic Voting 2 

 3 

ABSTRACT: Establishes a framework for electronic voting. 4 
 5 
Sponsored by: Osai Egharevba ‘21 6 

 7 
Whereas, the accountability and transparency of the Student Assembly can be improved using 8 
electronic voting. 9 
 10 
Whereas, the efficiency of the Student Assembly can be increased using electronic voting. 11 
 12 
Be it therefore resolved, that article IV Student Assembly Bylaws are amended to include the 13 
following: 14 
 15 
Section 9: Default Voting Method 16 

A. The default method for voting on resolutions shall be vote by electronic device 17 
B. This section may be suspended on a per-resolution basis through a majority vote of the 18 

assembly. 19 

Be it therefore resolved, that the Student Assembly Standing Rules are amended to include the 20 
following: 21 
 22 
Section 9: Procedures for Electronic Voting 23 

A. Rule 1: The voting period on resolutions shall be twenty seconds by default. The chair may 24 
adjust this time at their discretion but must receive a majority vote of the assembly to shorten 25 
such time. 26 

B. Rule 2: At the chair’s discretion, electronic voting may be used to vote on amendments and 27 
parliamentary motions, subject to the restrictions outlined in this section. 28 

C. Rule 3: All voting members shall be provided with an electronic voting device if they do not have 29 
one to use during their term. 30 

D. Rule 4: The voting record of members shall be published on the Student Assembly website for 31 
transparency and accountability. 32 

Respectfully Submitted, 33 
 34 
Osai Egharevba ‘21 35 
College of Engineering Representative, Student Assembly 36 
 37 
(Reviewed by: Executive Committee, 5-0-0, 11/12/2019) 38 

Originally Presented on:  (11/14/2019) 

Type of Action:  Internal Policy 

Status/Result:  New Business 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

S.A. Resolution #12 1 

Revising the Student Assembly Bylaws to Dictate that Community Votes be 2 

Conducted Online 3 

 4 

ABSTRACT: Resolution to revise the Student Assembly bylaws to dictate that community votes be 5 
conducted online, in order to ensure that community votes are accessible, orderly, and private  6 
 7 
Sponsored by: Julian Kroll ’20, Masa Haddad ‘21 8 
 9 
Whereas, the current Student Assembly policy regarding community votes is delineated in Article 10 

IV, Section 7 of the Student Assembly Bylaws.  11 
 12 
Whereas, the current procedure for collection of community votes outlined in the bylaws is 13 
 problematically vague. In regard to voting procedure, the Bylaws only state that the votes 14 

will be collected by the Parliamentarian after verification of Cornell Undergraduate status.  15 
 16 
Whereas, in-person verification and voting are only feasible for a limited number of attendees 17 

during any given Student Assembly meeting. If the Student Assembly’s Parliamentarian is 18 
tasked with verifying an inordinate number of attendees, it is unlikely that they will be able to 19 
do so in an organized and secure manner.  20 

 21 
Whereas, in-person verification and voting are seldom private. As observed during the Student 22 

Assembly community vote conducted on April 11, 2019, physically collecting community 23 
votes forces students to choose between their privacy and their right to vote.  24 

 25 
Whereas, assuming that verified votes are recorded by the parliamentarian with no bylaws- 26 

mandated supervision, the parliamentarian could remain in possession of collected voting 27 
information after the Student Assembly meeting’s conclusion. This information could be 28 
circulated without the voters’ knowledge or consent.  29 

 30 

Whereas, during the Student Assembly community vote conducted on April 11, 2019, several  31 

students stated that they were personally imperiled by this lack of privacy. 32 

 33 
Whereas, a digital community vote would eliminate this lack of privacy. While a Qualtrics survey  34 

would display to the assembly the number of votes cast in the negative and affirmative, the 35 
Qualtrics survey does not record the voting choice of the individual.  36 

 37 
Whereas, physically collecting community votes creates an accessibility differential that empowers  38 

groups of high average socioeconomic status and disempowers groups of lower average 39 
socioeconomic status.  40 

 41 
Whereas, a higher proportion of lower-income students have on-campus jobs, lab obligations,  42 

Originally Presented on:  (11/7/2019) 

Type of Action:  Internal Policy 

Status/Result:  Business of the Day 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

and/or other work engagements that they are unable to cancel. Consequently, fewer 43 
members may find themselves able to attend a 3-hour long meeting on a weekday 44 
afternoon.  45 

 46 
Whereas, groups comprising individuals of lower socioeconomic status face more boundaries to  47 

mobilizing members than groups of higher SES. As a result, groups of lower SES are 48 
underrepresented in community votes.  49 

 50 
Whereas, digitally collecting votes would resolve this accessibility issue. By allowing students to vote  51 

on their mobile devices or computers and extending the voting time-frame, we can reduce 52 
the probability of a student being unable to cast a community vote due to time constraints. 53 

 54 
Whereas, we propose to collect community votes through a Qualtrics survey formatted with a  55 

Cornell University Web Authorization Portal (Henceforth CU Web-auth). The CU Web- 56 
auth will verify Cornell Undergraduate status before allowing individuals access to the voting 57 
Qualtrics. 58 

 59 
Whereas, The Qualtrics survey will intake voting information, display vote results (negative vs.  60 

affirmative), but will not keep record the personal voting information of verified students. 61 
Records will only indicate whether or not a student submitted a vote.  62 

 63 
Whereas, we propose that voting will begin at the beginning of the Student  64 

Assembly meeting at which the final vote is conducted and closed as the assembly votes  65 
commence. Deliberations will be live streamed.  66 
 67 

Whereas, we nonetheless hope that available community members will attend Student Assembly 68 
deliberations and engage in a lively and respectful discussion.  69 

  70 

Be it therefore resolved, lines 256-259 of the Student Assembly Bylaws will be removed and 71 
replaced with the following language: 72 
 73 

D.  “All community votes shall be submitted through a Qualtrics survey, or an alternative 74 
survey medium of comparable functionalities supported by the university, to which a Cornell 75 
University Web Authorization Portal has been applied. The survey will include options A. 76 
Yes, B. No, and C. Abstain. The link to this survey will be made easily accessible on the 77 
Student Assembly website. Voting members of the Student Assembly are prohibited from 78 
casting a community vote. The relevant legislation text will be linked on the same page. The 79 
web page must also include a clearly visible disclaimer indicating that community votes 80 
cannot be altered or revoked after their submission, and that legislation linked on the page 81 
may be subject to change during Student Assembly deliberations. The voting shall begin at 82 
the beginning of the Student Assembly meeting at which the final vote is conducted. The 83 
voting shall end at the commencement of voting for assembly members, at which point the 84 
tally of community votes will be announced to the Student Assembly. It will be the 85 
responsibility of the Parliamentarian to consult with the Office of the Assemblies in order to 86 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cornell University Student Assembly ☺ www.CornellSA.org 
Stay Informed. Get Involved. Make a Difference.  

execute these tasks. The parliamentarian may exercise discretion in preemptively preparing a 87 
community vote survey for legislation that is particularly engaging to the community, and for 88 
which a community vote may be eventually requested.  89 

 90 
Be it finally resolved, after item 6 of Article 3, Section 8 of the Student Assembly. Bylaws, which  91 

identify the duties of the parliamentarian, the following language will be inserted:  92 
 93 

7. The parliamentarian shall be responsible for facilitating digital community votes, pursuant 94 
to procedures established in the Student Assembly Bylaws Article IV, Section 7, item D.  95 
 96 

Respectfully Submitted, 97 
 98 
Julian Kroll ’20 99 
Arts and Sciences Representative, Student Assembly 100 
 101 
Masa Haddad ‘21 102 
College of Human Ecology Representative, Student Assembly 103 
 104 
(Reviewed by: Executive Committee, 5-0-0, 11/05/2019) 105 


	11-14-19 Student Assembly Agenda.pdf
	Cornell University Student Assembly
	Agenda of the Thursday, November 14th, 2019 Meeting
	4:45-6:30pm in the Memorial Room of Willard Straight Hall

	SA Minutes 2019-11-07.pdf
	Convocation Byline Report 2020-2022.pdf
	Class Councils Byline Report 2020-2022.pdf
	Senior Days Byline Report 2020-2022.pdf
	SA Resolution 14 - Creation of the Office of Student Government Relations.pdf
	SA Resolution 15 - Creation of a Working Group of Student Assembly Composition, Structure, and Representations .pdf
	SA Resolution 16 - Creation of the “One Cornell Fund” .pdf
	SA Resolution 17 - Establishing a Framework for Electronic Voting.pdf
	SA Resolution 12 - Revising the Student Assembly Bylaws to Dictate that Community Votes be Conducted Online .pdf

